
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/08/2019 • Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Greece 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 12/2013 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 08/2014 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 10 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts is to provide children an enriched 

and rigorous education through the humanities and arts integration leading to success in college, 
careers, and life. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 Key Design Element: More time on Task
We provide extended time on task opportunities for our
students with uninterrupted sessions for ELA and math. Our
longer day and extended calendar all contribute to more
time on task for our students. Additionally, we will partner
with our parents to support opportunities for learning at
home in the evenings, on weekends and vacations. 

How we accomplish this at RA:
ACE Block 
Arts Integration Accommodations for students
RTI Plans 
WBT to increase student engagement
We track Classroom Engagement Averages
Mindful Moments to increase focus 
Brain Breaks 
8 academic nights per year for families 

Variable 2 Key Design Element: A Disposition for Learning Habits of the
mind / Character Strengths 

A Habit of Mind means having a disposition toward behaving
intelligently when confronted with problems, the answers to
which are not immediately known: dichotomies, dilemmas,
enigmas, and uncertainties. Character strengths and virtues
are an important part of the work of positive psychology.
Positive Psychology is the scientific study of the strengths
that enable individuals and communities to thrive. The field 
is founded on the belief that people want to lead meaningful
and fulfilling lives, to cultivate what is best within
themselves, and to enhance their experiences of love, work, 

2 / 10 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

and play. Employing Habits of Mind and Positive Psychology's
character strengths and virtues together requires drawing
forth certain patterns of intellectual behavior that produce
powerful results. At RA we infuse this important work through
all parts of the day using the Positivity Project.
How we accomplish this at RA:
Explicitly teach the attributes each day through the Positivity
Project Lessons
Workshops through the Center For Youth
Boys Club
Mindfulness 
ARTS Awards highlight children who possess the character
strengths and dispositions
The Super Improver Walls reward improvements in these 
areas 
Kindness Initiative 
Highlighted on the Daily Announcements
Infused into the curriculum 
Included in the family newsletters
H.U.G.S. 

Variable 3 Key Design Element: A Focus on Literacy and Language 
Speech and Language Support for All Learners
A Speech Language Pathologist (SLP) is a critical member of
our Primary Team who assesses, diagnoses and remediates
children with speech, language, and cognitive maturational
delays outside of the special education process. Renaissance
Academy recognizes that young children develop at different
maturational rates. We provide alternative modalities of
expression and communication to support important
language and comprehension milestones without undo
classification. Our SLP models articulation, fluency, and other
aspects of speech with which teachers will support language
and communication development. An SLP will work
collaboratively with classroom teachers through the
planning, implementation, and reflection on lesson delivery.
This provides scaffolded and focused support to address
areas of delay.
Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts’ focus on
language acquisition and development will help students
learn to communicate effectively with others and learn to
solve problems and independently make decisions. Proper
skills are necessary to communicate effectively. Improved
communication through infused speech and language
instruction will result in a better educational, social, and 
emotional experience for a child. 

How we accomplish this at RA:
1 and ½ FTE Speech Language Pathologists on staff.
1 SLP exclusively works with Kindergarten and 1st grade by
co teaching in ELA
The SLP teaches the language objective and grows students
abilities to use strategies to increase their expressive and 
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receptive language skills
Students who would not classify for special education SLP
support receive small group or individual speech services to
remediate their areas of need 
Classes use visual schedules 
Anchor charts are used as silent teachers 
Schoolwide use of Accountable Talk 
Vocabulary lessons are explicitly taught in shared reading
WBT uses gestures, mirroring and call and response. 

Variable 4 Key Design Elements: A Focus on Numeracy and the Eight
Mathematical Practices 
Renaissance Academy focuses on numeracy and the eight
mathematical practices with its students. The shift to
working with students on how to “do math” is a focus of the
CCSS and has been linked to increased student achievement. 
A spiraled a vertically articulated curriculum is provided
which will include the following topics: number sense,
mathematical practices, operations, and algebraic thinking,
numbers, and operations in base ten, number and operations
with fractions, measurement and data, and geometry.
Formative anchor assessments are used to determine 
student achievement level with regard to the mathematical
benchmarks throughout the year. 

How we accomplish this at RA:
Computer based interventions: Symphony math and I Ready
Math journaling
Problem based math approach
Real world projects
NWEA scores that indicate trends 
Exemplars: a resource that helps provide high quality word
problems and real life activities
Math coach 
Rewrote all curriculum 
Worked with a Professor of Mathematics Education to audit 
the program and make recommendations that we followed in
our new math program 

Variable 5 Key Design Elements: Character Education
Creating a productive citizenry has always been a goal of
public education. Most recently the need for more
comprehensive character education programs in schools has
become a priority. Thus, we have selected Character
Education as one of the Key Design Elements of Renaissance
Academy Charter School of the Arts education program.
Such programs allow students to learn about and develop
positive personal attitudes, skills, and attributes. 

RA uses the positivity project as our character education
program. The entire school students a different character
strength and virtue each week. These are incorporated into
various parts of our day. 
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How we accomplish this at RA:
ARTS Awards 
These are highlighted during the morning announcements
Safety Patrol for 5th grades
Counselors use social stories with students that focus on 
character education attributes 
Positivity Project discusses 24 strengths which include the
Habits of Mind 

Variable 6 Key Design Elements: Arts Integration
In addition to complying with the New York State Learning
Standards in the Arts (Music, Visual Arts, Dance, Theatre),
the arts will be interwoven into other academic curricula. 
Studies cited demonstrate conclusive evidence that 
Renaissance Academy’s program is likely to lead to
increased student learning and achievement with the
school’s anticipated student population. Teaching about and
through the fine arts fosters positive emotional development
by encouraging children to identify and analyze their feelings
and develop a deeper understanding of themselves. 

How we accomplish this at RA:
Each student receive three different art forms during Arts
Integration
Yearly training for staff around AI
5 full time AI teachers 
2 AI nights for families to learn alongside their students
Common planning time 2X each week for the classroom
teachers and the AI teacher 
Enrichment opportunities
Field trips that show the integration between academics and 
arts 
Performance and "informances" at school and in the 
community 

Variable 7 Key Design Element: Extensive Support for our Students and
Their Families 

Renaissance Academy believes partnering with parents and
families will increase student achievement. We have built 
extensive support for our students and their families into our
program design. RA has a school psychologist, social worker,
director of safety and Wellness, a full time school nurse, a
coordinator special services, and a family services
coordinator on staff. These staff members work in concert to 
address the needs that our students and our families may
have. We have created Partnerships with Community
agencies and other organizations that can provide support
outside of the school day as well. 

How we accomplish this at RA:
Nurse, social worker, psychologist, and Family Services
Coordinator 
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Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

Mindful Moments help children with self regulation
The RTI process helps families and children who are
experiencing educational or behavioral difficulties
RAFFA Meetings often have a community service or agency
in attendance 
CFY partnership provides respite to our families and other
services 
CFT partnership provides a de escalation and prevention
specialist who works with our children in need
There is extensive behavior support for our teachers
FoodLink Backpack program: families are given food for the
weekends 
Home visits 
Provide transportation to parent education activities and
meetings as needed
Newsletter provides helpful hints for the parents
Parent conferences 
RA employs a coordinator of special services who liaises with
the sending districts
1 ½ speech language pathologists
Communication apps
The School Improvement Team has parent representation
Active school website, Facebook page, Instagram and Twitter
where information is shared with families 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

www.renacad.org 

440 

432 
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k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 
Served at Site 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 

for coming year
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) 

Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

Site 1 299 Kirk Road 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Donna Marie Cozine, 
Ed.D. 

Craig E. Eichmann 

Craig E. Eichmann 

Donna Marie Cozine, 
Ed.D. 

Craven O. Rolle 

Donna Marie Cozine, 
Ed.D. 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone Alternate Phone 

Private Space 

Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/100359180/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/100359180/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

8 / 10 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	
	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	

	

1 

2 

n1. Were there any revisions to 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 

Yes 

charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 

Students dismiss at 
1:00 pm to provide
for additional Change in professionalschedule/calendar development for
teachers to improve
student outcomes. 

Chief of Curriculum 
and Instruction was 
adopted to the RA jobOther positions to focus on
all areas of 
academics, 

4/09/2019 7/8/2019 

01/08/2019 7/8/2019 

Addition of Chief of Change in Curriculum and 3 organizational 5/14/2019 7/8/2019 Instruction to the structure organization chart 

4 

5 

More revisions to add? No 

ATTESTATION 
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o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Donna Marie Cozine, Ed.D. 

Position Chief Educational Officer 

Phone/Extension  

Email  

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/09 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/08/2019 

RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000082488 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	
	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 07/12/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Increase aggregate
math performance by
10% for the 2018
2019 school year as
compared to the
2017 2018 school 
year to lead to the
NYS standard of 
performance by the
by the 2020 2021
school year. 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

NYS Assessment 
Results 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Not Met 

Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

Data from NYSED is 
not yet available,
internal data from 
iReady and
benchmark 
assessments indicate 
it highly likely that RA
will meet this goal. 

The instructional 
leadership team will
continue to focus on 
improving academics
by following protocols
developed by RELAY
school of education 
which focus on Data 
Driven Instruction 
and regularly and
quickly responding to
weekly student data.
This method will 
allow RA to address 
issues of teaching
and learning in real
time which should 
enable our 
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instructional staff to 
fill gaps so that our
students can access 
grade level
standards. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
2 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Aggregate ELA
performance
To increase 3% for 
the 2018 2019 
school year as
compared to the
2017 2018 school 
year to lead to the
NYS standard of 
performance by the
2020 2021 school 
year. 

Increase iReady
assessment results of 
at or above grade
level students in ELA 
by 10% 

NYS Assessment Not Met Results 

iReady fall and spring Met results 

Data from NYSED is 
not yet available,
internal data from 
iReady and
benchmark 
assessments indicate 
it highly likely that RA
will meet this goal. 

The instructional 
leadership team will
continue to focus on 
improving academics
by following protocols
developed by RELAY
school of education 
which focus on Data 
Driven Instruction 
and regularly and
quickly responding to
weekly student data.
This method will 
allow RA to address 
issues of teaching
and learning in real
time which should 
enable our 
instructional staff to 
fill gaps so that our
students can access 
grade level
standards. 

Math performance of
students at or above 
grade level on iReady
diagnostic 
assessments 
increased from 
September to June by
the following 
amounts: 

Grade K: 100% to 
100% 
Grade 1: 83% to 
100% 

2 / 6 
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Grade 2: 70% to 90% 
Grade 3: 7% to 42% 
Grade 4: 7% to 42% 
Grade 5: 10% to 27% 
Grade 6: 10% to 39% 

Aggregate 41% to
63% 

Academ 
ic Goal 
4 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Academ 
ic Goal 
7 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Increase iReady
assessment results of iReady fall and springat or above grade Met results level students in 
math by 10% 

ELA performance of
students at or above 
grade level on iReady
diagnostic 
assessments 
increased from 
September to June by
the following 
amounts: 

Grade K: 100% to 
100% 
Grade 1: 84% to 
100% 
Grade 2: 66% to 90% 
Grade 3: 31% to 58% 
Grade 4: 14% to 36% 
Grade 5: 15% to 33% 
Grade 6: 10% to 27% 

Aggregate 46% to
63% 

3 / 6 
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2. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

3. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met 
Evaluate Progress 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Improve academic
achievement in ELA 

Org
Goal 1 

and math by
collaborating with
academically
successful charter 
schools (local & non
local) on ways to
improve RA’s level of
academic 

Not Met 

achievement 

Improve academic
achievement in ELA 

Org
Goal 2 

and math by
developing &
implementing a plan
to move the needle 

Not Met 

for tier II students 

Data is not yet
available. The 
academic committee 
will review student 
data each month to 
determine progress
toward the goal. The
committee will 
continue to work with 
the instructional 
leadership team to
create and support
systems that will
increase student 
achievement. 

Data is not yet
available. The 
academic committee 
will review student 
data each month to 
determine progress
toward the goal. The
committee will 
continue to work with 
the instructional 
leadership team to
create and support
systems that will
increase student 
achievement. 

Data is not yet
available. The 

4 / 6 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	
	 	
	

	

	

	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	
	

	
	

	
	 	

	

	

	 	 	
	
	
	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

Improve academic
achievement in ELA 
and math by
allocating moreOrg resources in the Not Met Goal 3 2019 2020 budget to
instructional support
and professional
development. 

academic committee 
will review student 
data each month to 
determine progress
toward the goal. The
academic committee 
will make 
recommendations for 
additional academic 
resources for the 
finance committees 
consideration. 

Create clear post RA
pathways for
students by
convening strategicOrg discussion to develop Met Goal 4 clear pathways for
students when 
moving on from their
current school. 

Create clear post RA
pathways for
students by engaging

Org families and students Met Goal 5 in process for
creating pathways
for students after 6th 
grade 

5. Do have more organizational Yes 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Diversify funding
sources to provide
new and improved
opportunities for
students by
developing a plan to Annual Budgetmeet organizational Spent v. Actualneeds by building a Financia Reports 

This is a multi year
goal upon which the
board will continue to 
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l Goal 1 fundraising strategy
for raising funds to
complete auditorium/
gymnasium project,
including regular
tours that highlight
benefits of an RA 
education. 

Academic and 
Finance Committee 
reports 

Met focus. Steps for years
2 and 3 are outlined 
in RA's strategic plan. 

Diversify funding
sources to provide
new and improved
opportunities for Annual Budgetstudents by building Grant Budgetsand deepening Spent v. ActualFinancia relationships with Reports Met l Goal 2 foundations to Academic and support integration Finance Committee of additional reports intervention 
specialists and
coaches into RA 
curriculum. 

Retain high quality
talent through
compensation
adjustments by
completing Annual Budget
compensation study Spent v. Actual
(including salary and ReportsFinancia benefits) to Staff attrition and Met l Goal 3 determine gap Retention data 
between current RA HR and Finance 
compensation and Committee reports 
competition
(specifically public
districts). 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 

This is a multi year
goal upon which the
board will continue to 
focus. Steps for years
2 and 3 are outlined 
in RA's strategic plan. 

This is a multi year
goal upon which the
board will continue to 
focus. Steps for years
2 and 3 are outlined 
in RA's strategic plan. 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/19/2019 • Last updated: 08/25/2019 

RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTSSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 6029122 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 447 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 13488 
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2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

271614 

175499 

447113 

1000 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 
Rochester, New York 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Renaissance Academy Charter School of 
the Arts (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
and the related statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related statements of 
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
and its cash flows for the years then ended, and the changes in net assets and functional expenses for 
the year ended June 30, 2019 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts' statements of 
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018, and we expressed an unmodified 
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 10, 2018. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein, as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects with the audited financial statements from which it has 
been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 
23, 2019 on our consideration of Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts’ internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Renaissance Academy 
Charter School of the Arts' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts’ internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Heveron & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 

Rochester, New York 
October 23, 2019 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

BALANCE SHEETS 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Accounts Receivable 

Grants Receivable 

2019 

$ 68,902 

46,119 

51,457 

2018 

$ 936,245 

52,982 

41,963 

Total Current Assets 166,478 1,031,190 

Fixed Assets 
Building and Equipment, Net 

Other Assets 

Escrow Account 

6,988,682 

75,028 

5,838,273 

75,006 

Total Other Assets 75,028 75,006 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,230,188 $ 6,944,469 
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

2019 2018 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 933,821 $ 1,219,829 

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 362,468 1,898,985 

Total Current Liabilities 1,296,289 3,118,814 

Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-Term Debt 3,131,782 1,774,824 

Less: Loan Acquisition Costs, Net (90,464) (53,816) 

Net Long-Term Debt 3,041,318 1,721,008 

Total Liabilities 4,337,607 4,839,822 

Net Assets 
Without Donor Restrictions: 

Undesignated 2,887,231 2,014,647 

With Donor Restrictions: 

Purpose Restrictions 5,350 90,000 

Total Net Assets 2,892,581 2,104,647 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 7,230,188 $ 6,944,469 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2019 

(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2018) 

Revenues and Other Support: 

Public School District: 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

With Donor 

Restrictions 2019 

Totals 

2018 

Revenue - Resident Student Enrollme

Revenue - Students with Disabilities 

Special Charter School Aid 

Federal Grants 

State Grants 

Contributions 

Interest Income 

nt $ 6,056,872 

331,916 

118,746 

308,915 

24,873 

120,754 

104 

$ -

-

-

-

-

5,350 

-

$ 6,056,872 

331,916 

118,746 

308,915 

24,873 

126,104 

104 

$ 4,899,615 

191,529 

-

276,292 

18,618 

144,793 

217 

Other Income 

Releases from Restrictions 

6,703 

90,000 

-

(90,000) 

6,703 

-

6,507 

-

Total Revenues and Other Support 7,058,883 (84,650) 6,974,233 5,537,571 

Expenses: 

Program Services: 

Regular Education 4,549,283 

Special Education 1,103,355 

-

-

4,549,283 

1,103,355 

3,807,109 

898,353 

Total Program Services Expense 5,652,638 - 5,652,638 4,705,462 

Supporting Services: 

Management and General 533,661 - 533,661 804,628 

Total Expenses 6,186,299 - 6,186,299 5,510,090 

Change in Net Assets 872,584 (84,650) 787,934 27,481 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 2,014,647 90,000 2,104,647 2,077,166 

Net Assets - End of Year $ 2,887,231 $ 5,350 $ 2,892,581 $ 2,104,647

 See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2019 

(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2018) 

Program Services 

Personnel Services Costs 
Instructional Personnel 

Administrative Staff Personnel 

Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries 

Pension Expense 

Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes 

Total Personnel Services 

Other Purchased Services 

Interest 

Depreciation 

Repairs and Maintenance 

Supplies and Materials 

Student Services 

Utilities 

Technology 

Office Expense 

Equipment and Furnishings 

Insurance 

Other Expenses 

Staff Development 

Accounting and Auditing Fees 

Marketing and Recruitment 

Legal Services 

Total Expenses 

2019 
No. of 

Positions 

65.5 

9.5 

9.5 

84.5 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General 

$ 5,401 

262,537 

4,757 

272,695 

8,167 

58,591 

339,453 

47,235 

17,561 

17,775 

15,418 

-

-

12,188 

5,000 

32,764 

-

4,209 

15,486 

2,327 

12,745 

500 

11,000 

$ 533,661 

Totals 
2019 2018 

$2,863,970 $2,531,641 

600,906 603,448 

254,282 216,615 

3,719,158 3,351,704 

57,003 50,656 

799,098 734,996 

4,575,259 4,137,356 

216,993 308,152 

217,943 107,294 

177,753 87,336 

157,224 155,040 

149,999 136,062 

144,250 98,820 

117,468 111,317 

110,800 80,076 

75,323 61,403 

63,988 50,580 

54,754 42,094 

51,779 53,980 

36,544 23,279 

12,745 10,700 

12,477 26,882 

11,000 19,719 

$6,186,299 $5,510,090

Regular 
Education 

$2,169,670 

297,765 

220,200 

2,687,635 

39,069 

577,465 

3,304,169 

149,330 

176,336 

139,181 

124,789 

131,999 

126,843 

92,646 

93,104 

37,452 

56,309 

44,480 

31,694 

30,795 

-

10,156 

-

$4,549,283 

Special 
Education 

$ 688,899 

40,604 

29,325 

758,828 

9,767 

163,042 

931,637 

20,428 

24,046 

20,797 

17,017 

18,000 

17,407 

12,634 

12,696 

5,107 

7,679 

6,065 

4,599 

3,422 

-

1,821 

-

$1,103,355 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For The Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Revenue from School Districts 

Grant Revenues 

Contributions 

Other Sources 

Payments to Vendors for Goods and Services Rendered 

Payments to Charter School Personnel for Services Rendered 

Net Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 

Change in Escrow Account 

Net Cash Flows Used By Investing Activities 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities 

Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 

Payments on Long-Term Debt 

Proceeds from Line of Credit 

Payments on Line of Credit 

Net Cash Flows Provided/(Used) By Financing Activities 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 

Noncash Investing and Financing Transaction: 

Purchase of Building Improvements 

Construction Payable 

2019 2018 

$ 6,595,143 

324,294 

126,104 

6,807 

(1,414,114) 

(4,575,259) 

1,062,975 

$ 5,254,106 

606,786 

144,793 

6,724 

(1,300,128) 

(4,111,120) 

601,161 

(1,750,771) 

(22) 

(1,750,793) 

(2,311,243) 

83 

(2,311,160) 

34,805 

(214,364) 

696,421 

(696,387) 

(179,525) 

(867,343) 

936,245 

2,497,195 

(140,395) 

7,352 

(7,352) 

2,356,800 

646,801 

289,444 

$ 68,902 $ 936,245 

$ 797,153 

$ (797,153) 

$ 1,175,986 

$(1,175,986) 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For The Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(Continued) 

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 

Change in Net Assets 

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 

Loan Acquisition Interest Expense 

(Increase)/Decrease In: 

Accounts Receivable 

Grants Receivable 

Increase In: 

Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities 

Supplemental Disclosures 
Cash Paid During The Year For: 

Interest 

2019 2018 

$ 787,934 

177,753 

7,128 

6,863 

(9,494) 

92,791 

$ 1,062,975 

$ 

$ 

27,481 

87,336 

4,210 

(6,285) 

451,115 

37,304 

601,161 

$ 210,815 $ 103,084 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts (the School) is a New York nonprofit 
organization that was formed to provide children an enriched and rigorous educational 
experience, through the infusion of the humanities and arts rooted in a culture of high 
academic standards leading to success in college and careers in the Greece and Rochester, 
New York community. The School currently serves grades Kindergarten through 6th grade. 
The school receives the majority of its funding from state and local governments, through 
local school districts. The school also receives federal and state grants, contributions, and 
other income. 

The main programs of the School are as follows: 

REGULAR EDUCATION: The School's instructional pedagogy is one based on active 
learning and inquiry-based lessons. Engaging students in the “why” of the lessons is as 
important to the teaching staff as is the final outcomes. The arts staff works diligently with the 
academic staff to integrate arts into the curriculum and to integrate academics into the arts, 
while keeping in alignment with the New York State Learning Standards. 

SPECIAL EDUCATION: The School is open to all children and does not discriminate on the 
basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other grounds that would be 
unlawful or deny the civil rights of any individual. In accordance with the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act, the Rehabilitation Act, and Section 504, and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the School provides a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive 
environment to students with disabilities. The primary service delivery for students with 
special needs is inclusion. For students requiring supplemental services, the School ensures 
the required services are provided as outlined in the student's Individual Education Plan or 
504 Plan. 

Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader. 

Net Assets 
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the 
existence or absence of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and 
changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Net Assets (Continued) 
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and 
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed 
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will 
be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed 
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in 
perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when 
the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was 
restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 

Contributions restricted by donors are reported as increases in net assets without donor 
restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All 
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor 
restrictions, based on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with 
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

Revenue Recognition 
A portion of the School's revenue is derived from grants and tuition.  Amounts received, but 
not yet earned are reported as deferred revenue. 

Funding sources may, at their discretion, amend the grant and contract amounts. In addition, 
reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, may be requested as a result of 
noncompliance by the School with the terms of the grants and contracts.  The School records 
such amendments, reimbursements, and returns of funds as an adjustment to revenue in the 
year of the amendment. 

Contributions 
Contributions are recorded at the time of receipt or when evidence of a non-conditional 
promise to give has been received. Promises subject to conditions are not recorded as income 
until those conditions have been met. Contributions that are expected to be received in future 
years are recorded at their present value. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, require 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the amounts of revenue and 
expenses. Actual results could vary from those estimates. 

Receivables 
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Amounts that 
management believes to be uncollectible after collection efforts have been completed are 
written off. In addition, if necessary, management provides an allowance to reduce 
receivables to amounts management expects will be collected. Management determined that 
no allowances were necessary at June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash 
on hand and in banks, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The School 
considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. Certain of these accounts are not federally insured. The 
School has not experienced any losses in these accounts and does not believe it is exposed to 
any significant credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30: 

Checking 
Savings 

Total 

2019 
$ 62,872 

6,030 

$ 68,902 

2018 
$ 902,144 

34,101 

$ 936,245 

Cash in Escrow 
The School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of their charter 
agreement. The amount in escrow as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $75,028 and $75,006, 
respectively. The escrow is restricted to fund legal and other costs related to the dissolution of 
the School. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Fixed Assets 
Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. The School 
capitalizes property and equipment with a cost of over $5,000 and an estimated life of three or 
more years. The cost and accumulated depreciation of property items sold or retired are 
eliminated from the accounts. Minor expenditures for maintenance, repairs, and renewals are 
expensed. Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the time of 
donation. 

Fixed assets consisted of the following at June 30: 

2019 2018 
Building and Improvements $ 7,191,337 $ 3,337,294 
Construction In Progress - 2,525,881 
Equipment 70,212 70,212 
Land 89,964 89,964 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (362,831) (185,078) 

Building and Equipment, Net $ 6,988,682 $ 5,838,273 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets. 
The estimated useful lives used in computing depreciation are as follows: 

Years 
Building and Improvements 40 
Equipment 5 

Depreciation expense amounted to $177,753 and $87,336 for the years ended June 30, 2019 
and 2018, respectively. 

Loan Acquisition Costs 
Loan acquisition costs are reported on the balance sheet as a direct reduction from the face 
amount of debt in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. The School reflects amortization of loan acquisition costs as interest 
expense on the straight-line method over the term of the obligation. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Income Taxes 
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the School is qualified as a charity exempt 
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, no provision for federal or 
state income taxes has been made. 

Marketing 
Marketing costs are expensed as incurred. 

Functional Expenses 
The costs of providing the various program services have been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated 
among the program, and management and general categories. An immaterial amount of fund 
raising costs for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 are included in management and 
general expenses. 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to both 
program and supporting functions. Therefore, allocation on a reasonable basis that is 
consistently applied is required. The expenses that are allocated include repairs and 
maintenance, insurance, utilities, interest, and depreciation, which are allocated on a square 
footage basis, as well as personnel services, other purchased services, student services, 
supplies and materials, technology, office expenses, staff development, marketing and 
recruitment, and other expenses, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and 
effort for each category. 

Comparative Financial Information 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in 
total. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 from which the summarized information was 
derived. 

Reclassifications 
Certain account balances as of June 30, 2018 have been reclassified to conform with the 
presentation as of June 30, 2019. The reclassifications had no impact on previously reported 
net assets. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
During 2018, the School adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. This guidance is intended to 
improve the net asset classifications and the information presented in the financial statements 
and notes about a not-for-profit entity's liquidity, financial performance, and cash flows. 
Main provisions of this guidance include, when applicable, the presentation of two classes of 
net assets versus the previously required three. The guidance also enhances disclosures for 
board designated amounts, composition of net assets with donor restrictions, liquidity, and 
expenses by both their natural and functional classification. 

A recap of the net asset reclassifications driven by the adoption of ASU No. 2016-14 as of 
June 30, 2018 follows. 

Net Asset Classifications 
As Previously Presented:

 Unrestricted 
Temporarily Restricted 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

$ 2,014,647 
-

With Donor 
Restrictions 

$ -
90,000 

Total Net 
Assets 

$ 2,014,647
90,000

 Net assets, as reclassified $ 2,014,647 $ 90,000 $ 2,104,647 

NOTE 2 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

The School regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating 
needs and other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of 
its available funds. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general 
expenditures over a 12-month period, the School considers all expenditures related to its 
ongoing activities, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to 
be general expenditures. 

At June 30, 2019, the following financial assets could readily be made available within one 
year of the balance sheet date to meet general expenditures: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 68,902 
Accounts receivable 46,119 
Grants receivable 51,457 
Less donor-restricted net assets (5,350) 

$ 161,128 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 3 - LINE OF CREDIT 

The School has a line of credit with a maximum authorization of $250,000. Advances against 
this line bears interest at 1.75% above the current bank prime rate. This line is secured by any 
cash, securities, instruments or other property of the School in possession of M&T Bank. 
There was $34 outstanding at June 30, 2019. There was no amount outstanding at June 30, 
2018. 

NOTE 4 - LONG TERM DEBT 

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30: 2019 2018 

Note payable to Canandaigua National Bank, originally in 
the amount of $955,500. There are loan acquisition costs 
of $24,836 and $27,094 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. This note bears interest at a rate of 4.79%. 
The interest rate will change in July 2020 and July 2025. 
Principal and interest are payable in monthly installments 
of $7,488 through July 1, 2030.  As part of the agreement, 
the School must maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 
not less than 1.2:1. This note is secured by a mortgage on 
the building. $ 768,863 $ 819,955 

Note payable to Canandaigua National Bank, originally in 
the amount of $172,250.There are loan acquisition costs 
of $3,335 and $3,638 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. This note bears interest at a rate of 4.79%. 
The interest rate will change in July 2020 and July 2025. 
Principal and interest are payable in monthly installments 
of $6,130 through January 1, 2031. As part of the 
agreement, the School must maintain a debt service 
coverage ratio of not less than 1.2:1. This note is secured 
by a second lien on the building mortgage. 141,816 151,242 

Note payable to a related party (family relationship to 
CEO), originally in the amount of $350,000. This note 
bears interest at a rate of 6%. Principal and interest are 
payable in monthly installments of $6,766 through June 1, 
2020. The remaining principal is due on 
June 30, 2020. 181,578 228,075 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 4 - LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Note payable to Canandaigua National Bank, originally in 
the amount of $772,000. There are loan acquisition costs 
of $21,435 and $23,084 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. This note bears interest at a rate of 4.99%. 
The interest rate will change in December 2022 and 
December 2027. Principal and interest are payable in 
monthly installments of $6,130 through November 1, 
2032. As part of the agreement, the School must maintain 
a debt service coverage ratio of not less than 1.2:1. This 
note is secured by a third lien on the building mortgage. 712,896 749,342 

Note payable to Canandaigua National Bank, originally in 
the amount of $1,760,000. There are loan acquisition 
costs of $40,858 at June 30, 2019. This note bears interest 
at a rate of 5.94%. The interest rate will change in April 
2024. Principal and interest are payable in monthly 
installments of $6,507 through April 1, 2029. As part of 
the agreement, the School must maintain a debt service 
coverage ratio of not less than 1.2:1. This note is secured 
by a fourth lien on the building mortgage. 1,689,097 -

Construction loan payable to Canandaigua National Bank 
for maximum of $1,760,000. The note originated in 
March 2018. Interest only payments of 1% above prime 
are payable on the principal amount during the 
construction loan period. The loan matured August 2018 
and was converted to a mortgage. - 1,725,195 

Total Debt 3,494,250 3,673,809 

Less: Current Maturities (362,468) (1,898,985) 

Long-Term Portion 3,131,782 1,774,824 

Less: Loan Acquisition Costs (90,464) (53,816) 

Net Long-Term Debt $ 3,041,318 $ 1,721,008 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 4 - LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Maturities of long-term debt for the years after June 30, 2020 are as follows:                   

Year Amount 
2021 $ 191,194 
2022 202,619 
2023 212,779 
2024 223,825 
Thereafter 2,301,365 

Total $ 3,131,782 

The note payables to Canandaigua National Bank noted above all require a debt service 
coverage ratio of not less than 1.2:1. The School has not met this covenant, however, it has 
obtained a waiver from the bank for this requirement. 

NOTE 5 - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND OTHER SERVICES 

Rochester City School District provides some of the special education services required by 
students of the School. Transportation is provided by the Rochester City and Greece School 
Districts. The School was unable to determine a value for these services, thus, these financial 
statements do not reflect revenue or expenses associated with those services. 

The School does need to offer special education services that are not provided through the 
Rochester City School District. The School has teachers on staff to provide these services; the 
revenue and expense for these services have been included in the financial statements. 

The School also receives State Aid in the form of textbooks and computer software through 
the Rochester City School District. The total aid received for the years ended June 30, 2019 
and June 30, 2018 was $24,873 and $18,618, respectively. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS 

The School has entered into a lease agreement under which they are leasing a copier. The 
lease expires in February 2022, and requires monthly payments of $1,242. Future minimum 
lease payments are as follows for the year ended June 30: 

Year Amount 

2020 $ 14,908 
2021 14,908 
2022 8,696 

NOTE 7 - DONATED SERVICES 

The School receives donated services that do not meet the criteria for recording as revenue 
and expense under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
During the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, there were 9 and 10 board members 
who donated 624 and 800 hours, respectively. There were also 115 and 72 volunteers who 
provided 250 and 186 hours of service during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. Volunteers assisted with tutoring services, administrative duties, and in the 
library. 

NOTE 8 - PENSION EXPENSE 

The School also has a 403(b) annuity retirement plan for its employees.There is no minimum 
service requirement to participate in the plan. Eligible employees may also receive 
discretionary amounts the School contributes. The Board of Trustees voted to make a 
contribution to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.  Pension expense for the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $57,003 and $50,656, respectively. 

NOTE 9 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

There were net assets restricted by donors of $5,350 for musical instruments at June 30, 2019 
and $90,000 for excellence in education at June 30, 2018. 
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RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

NOTE 10  - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 23, 2019, which is the date the 
statements were available for issuance. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the 
balance sheet as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 23, 2019.   

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Renaissance 
Academy Charter School of the Arts' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts’ internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts’ 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Renaissance Academy Charter School of the 
Arts' financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Heveron & Company CPAs 
Certified Public Accountants 

Rochester, New York 
October 23, 2019 
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Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 10/31/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118987091/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118987091/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading A federal Single Audit was not required because the school did 

the Federal Single Audit. not expend federal funds in excess of the threshold of 
$750,000. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A We are not recipients of a NYSED CSP Grant. 
the procedure report. 
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5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118987091/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118987091/JDKdnGTC4H/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Corrective Action Plan. 
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Auditors' Communications 

August 29, 2019 

To The Board of Trustees 
Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 
299 Kirk Road 
Rochester, NY 14612 

Dear Board Members: 

This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance.  It includes 
key findings and recommendations from our recently completed audit. Although we do have some internal 
control observations, we did not perform an examination of your internal control that would allow us to give 
an opinion on the adequacy of your controls. We welcome and encourage your response. 

Those charged with management and governance are responsible for: 

 safeguarding your assets, 
 ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors, and as required by charities laws 

and your own articles of incorporation, 

 assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your 
funding, 

 properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and 
 proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls. 

Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help you 
to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices. 

Our Responsibilities to You 
As part of our audit, we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
your controls that we become aware of.  

Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate 
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements.  Examples of controls are 
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and measures to 
prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors. 



Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate 
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly. 

Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less 
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

The Role of Internal Controls 
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following 
components: 

 Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and 
training, 

 Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing, 
 Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks, 
 Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and 
 Monitoring - ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working. 

General Observations 

Our general observations are that: 

 We have become aware of matters that we consider to be material weaknesses.  They are described 
below. 

 Recordkeeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner, although some 
audit adjustments were required to correct some account balances. 

 Internal controls are good for an organization of your size and staffing. We do have a few 
recommendations. 

 The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems 
appropriate. 

 We confirm that the significant accounting policies used by management, the significant estimates 
made by management (about areas such as useful life and collectibility), and the disclosures are 
appropriate for these financial statements. 

 Your financial statements also include supplementary information. That information has been 
prepared consistently with the prior year, and is appropriate and complete. 

 Management may disagree with auditors about areas needed to be accessed for audits or about 
conclusions that are reached with respect to amounts or disclosures. Management may explain 
their position and may also reach out to other CPAs or experts. We did not have any such 
disagreements or difficulties with management. 

 We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and we did not note any significant financial 
statement adjustments or unusual transactions. 



The combination of the following control deficiencies may allow misstatement and/or fraud to go 
undetected. Because of the magnitude of potential misstatements, these are considered material 
weaknesses. 

Necessary Adjustments: 

 Professional guidance clearly states that if outside auditors need to make significant adjustments to 
your financial statements for them to be correct, that must be communicated to management as a 
significant deficiency or as a material weakness. There were some important areas of the financial 
statements that needed adjustment, including accounts payable and building improvements.  This 
means that the financial statements you based your decisions during the year on were not accurate. 
We know that you have hired an outside accountant to assist in this area. 

 In order to have accurate records of cash accounts and to help identify any errors, you should 
reconcile bank accounts promptly.  During the audit, it was noted that at least one bank account 
had not been reconciled for approximately one year.  Cash should be reconciled timely so that 
management and the Board has accurate information for making decisions throughout the year. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

The recommendations in this letter are necessary for us to fulfill our responsibilities.  Please let us know if 
you have any questions about our recommendations or how to implement them. 

Sincerely, 

Heveron & Company CPAs 



October 22, 2019 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts 
299 Kirk Road 
Rochester, NY 14612 
Attention: Barbara Cozine 

Dear Barbara: 

Enclosed is the organization's 2018 Exempt Organization 
return. 

Specific filing instructions are as follows. 

FORM 990 RETURN: 

This return has qualified for electronic filing. After you 
have reviewed the return for completeness and accuracy, 
please sign, date and return Form 8879-EO to our office. We 
will transmit the return electronically to the IRS and no 
further action is required. Return Form 8879-EO to us by 
November 15, 2019. 

The Form 990 includes a Schedule B with donor information 
that is not subject to public inspection. If you put a copy 
of your tax return on your website or if you mail, fax or 
otherwise provide it to persons requesting a copy of your 
return, you should remove the Schedule B information. 

GuideStar will retrieve a copy of this return from IRS and 
post it to their website several weeks after you file. You 
should check with GuideStar (www.guidestar.org) periodically 
to make sure that your information is updated. 

Please call me if you have any questions about your returns, 
or if we can help you in any way. 



Your copies are attached to this letter. 

Sincerely, 

Jeanne Beutner 



  

 
 
 
 

 
     

   
       

       

 

 

   

Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

 

2018 
Department of the Treasury | Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public 
Internal Revenue Service | Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection 

A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1, 2018 and ending JUN 30, 2019 
B Check if 

applicable: 

Address 
change 
Name 
change 
Initial 
return 

Final 
return/ 
termin-
ated 

Amended 
return 
Applica-
tion 
pending 

C Name of organization 
Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts 

D Employer identification number 

Doing business as 

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) 
299 Kirk Road 

Room/suite E Telephone number 
 

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code 
Rochester, NY 14612 

6,974,233.G Gross receipts $ 

H(a) Is this a group return 
Xfor subordinates? ~~ Yes No 

H(b) Are all subordinates included? Yes No 

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

H(c) Group exemption number | 

Steven GordonF Name and address of principal officer: 
same as C above 

XI Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) 501(c) ( ) § (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or 527
www.renacad.orgJ Website: | 

XK Form of organization: Corporation Trust Association Other | 2014L Year of formation: NYM State of legal domicile:

Part I Summary 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
 &

 G
o

ve
rn

a
n

c
e Enriched and rigorous1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: 

educational experience through the infusion of humanities and art. 
2 Check this box | if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets. 

93 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 3 
94 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 4 

1045 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (Part V, line 2a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 5 
1246 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 6 
0.7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 7a 
0.b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 38 ���������������������� 7b 

R
e

ve
n

u
e 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) ~~~~~~~~ 

12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ��� 

Prior Year Current Year 
439,703. 578,638. 

5,091,144. 6,388,788. 
217. 104. 

6,507. 6,703. 
5,537,571. 6,974,233. 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ~~~ 

16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e)~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
0.b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) | 

17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ~~~~~~~ 

19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ���������������� 

0. 0. 
0. 0. 

4,111,121. 4,575,259. 
0. 0. 

1,398,969. 1,611,040. 
5,510,090. 6,186,299. 

27,481. 787,934. 

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

or
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
s

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 �������������� 

Beginning of Current Year End of Year 
6,944,469. 7,230,188. 
4,839,822. 4,337,607. 
2,104,647. 2,892,581. 

Part II Signature Block 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 

true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Signature of officer Date =Sign 
Steven Gordon, ChairpersonHere 
Type or print name and title = 

Date PTINCheckPrint/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature 

Paid Jeanne Beutner Jeanne Beutner 10/22/19 if self-employed 

Firm's name Heveron & Company CPAs, PLLCPreparer Firm's EIN 9
Firm's address 260 Plymouth Avenue SouthUse Only 99 Rochester, NY 14608 Phone no  

XMay the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) ��������������������� Yes No 

832001 12-31-18 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2018) 
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Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules 

Yes No 

1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule A~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 1 
XSchedule B, Schedule of Contributors2 Is the organization required to complete ? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 2 

3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ipublic office? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 3 

4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part IIduring the tax year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 4 

5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part IIIsimilar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 5 

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Iprovide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? 6 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IIthe environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 7 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes," complete 
Schedule D, Part III X~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 8 

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for 

amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services? 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 9 

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Vendowments, or quasi-endowments? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 10 

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X 

as applicable. 

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, 
Part VI X~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 11a 

b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIIassets reported in Part X, line 16? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 11b 

c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIIIassets reported in Part X, line 16? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 11c 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IXPart X, line 16? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 11d 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Xe Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? ~~~~~~ 11e 

f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Xthe organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? ~~~~ 11f 

12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete 
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII X~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 12a 

b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? 
XIf "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional ~~~~~ 12b 

XIf "Yes," complete Schedule E13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 13 
X14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 14a 

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business, 

investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IVor more? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 14b 

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IVforeign organization? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 15 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts III and IVor for foreign individuals? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 16 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX, 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Icolumn (A), lines 6 and 11e? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 17 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II1c and 8a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 18 

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If "Yes," 
complete Schedule G, Part III X~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 19 

XIf "Yes," complete Schedule H20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 20a 

b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ~~~~~~~~~~ 20b 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 
XIf "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and IIdomestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~�������������� 21 

 Form 990 (2018) 
3 

 renaissance 2018.04030 Renaissance Academy Charter RENAISS1



 

 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Form 990 (2018) Page 4 

Yes No 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

22 

23 

24a 

24b 

24c 

24d 

25a 

25b 

26 

27 

28a 

28b 

28c 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35a 

35b 

36 

37 

38 

a 

b 

c 

d 

a 

b 

Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. 

a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. 

Note. 

Yes No 

1a 

b 

c 

1a 

1b 

1c 

(continued) 

If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and III 

If "Yes," complete 
Schedule J 

If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete 
Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a 

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I 

If "Yes," complete 
Schedule L, Part I

 If "Yes," 
complete Schedule L, Part II 

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part III 

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV 
If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV 

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV 
If "Yes," complete Schedule M 

If "Yes," complete Schedule M 

If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I 
If "Yes," complete 

Schedule N, Part II 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I 
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, and 

Part V, line 1 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI 

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on 

Part IX, column (A), line 2? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current 

and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the 

last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease 

any tax-exempt bonds? 

Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? 

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and 

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or 

former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial 

contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member 

of any of these persons? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV 

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 

An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer, 

director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? 

~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? 

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation 

contributions? 

~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? 

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? 

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 

If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity 

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? ~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19? 

All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ������������������������������� 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V ��������������������������� 

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming 

(gambling) winnings to prize winners? ������������������������������������������� 

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules 

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

8 
0 

X 
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Yes No 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a 

b 

2a 

Note. 

2b 

3a 

3b 

4a 

5a 

5b 

5c 

6a 

6b 

7a 

7b 

7c 

7e 

7f 

7g 

7h 

8 

9a 

9b 

a 

b 

a 

b 

a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

h 

7d 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

a 

b 

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. 

a 

b 

10a 

10b 

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. 

a 

b 

11a 

11b 

a 

b 

Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. 12a 

12b 

Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 

Note. 

a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

13a 

13b 

13c 

14a 

14b 

15 

16 

(continued) 

e-file 

If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O 

If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O 

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? 

Form  (2018) 

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements, 

filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return ~~~~~~~~~~ 

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 

If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to (see instructions) 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a 

financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: 

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit 

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 

If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts 

were not tax deductible? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required 

to file Form 8282? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

���������������������������������������������������� 

If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year 

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 

~ 

Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Enter: 

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Enter: 

Gross income from members or shareholders 

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against 

amounts due or received from them.) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 

If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ������ 

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?

 See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the 

organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 

Enter the amount of reserves on hand 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 

excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 

If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. 

Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 

If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 

990 

J 

104 
X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

X 
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Part VI For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response 
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions. 
Governance, Management, and Disclosure 

XCheck if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ��������������������������� 

Section A. Governing Body and Management 
Yes No 

1a 

1b 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

a 

b 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7a 

7b 

8a 

8b 

9 

a 

b 

a 

b 

If "Yes," provide the names and addresses in Schedule O 

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing 

body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O. 

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following: 

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 

Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent 

~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other 

officer, director, trustee, or key employee? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision 

of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 

Did the organization have members or stockholders? 

~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or 

more members of the governing body? 

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or 

persons other than the governing body? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

The governing body? 

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the 

organization's mailing address? ����������������� 

9 

9 

X 

X 
X 
X 
X 

X 

X 

X 
X 

X 
(This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)Section B. Policies 

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, 

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. 

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? ~~~~~~ 

c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," describe 
in Schedule O how this was done ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent 

persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Other officers or key employees of the organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a 

taxable entity during the year? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation 

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's 

exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ������������������������������������ 

Yes No 

10a 

10b 

X 

11a X 

12a X 
12b X 

12c X 
13 X 
14 X 

15a X 
15b 

16a 

16b 

X 

X 

Section C. Disclosure 
NY17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed J 

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available 

for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 

Own website X Another's website X Upon request Other (explain in Schedule O) 

19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial 

statements available to the public during the tax year. 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records | 
The Organization -  
299 Kirk Road, Rochester, NY 14612 

 Form 990 (2018) 
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Part VIII Statement of Revenue 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII ������������������������� 

Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $ 

Total revenue. 

(A) (B) (C) (D) 

1 a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

h 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 
G

if
ts

, 
G

ra
n

ts
a

n
d

 O
th

e
r 

S
im

il
a

r 
A

m
o

u
n

ts

Total. 

Business Code 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

2

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

e
rv

ic
e

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

Total. 

3 

4 

5 

6 a 

b 

c 

d 

a 

b 

c 

d 

7 

a 

b 

c 

8 

a 

b 

9 a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

10 a 

b 

c 

a 

b 

Business Code 

11 a 

b 

c 

d 

e Total. 

O
th

e
r 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 

12 

Revenue excluded 
from tax under 

sections 
512 - 514 

All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 

similar amounts not included above 

See instructions 

Total revenue Related or 
exempt function 

revenue 

Unrelated 
business 
revenue 

Federated campaigns 

Membership dues 

~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~ 

Fundraising events 

Related organizations 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Government grants (contributions) 

~~ 

Add lines 1a-1f ����������������� | 

All other program service revenue ~~~~~ 

Add lines 2a-2f ����������������� | 

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 

other similar amounts) 

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

| 

Royalties ����������������������� | 

(i) Real (ii) Personal 

Gross rents 

Less: rental expenses 

Rental income or (loss) 

Net rental income or (loss) 

~~~~~~~ 

~~~ 

~~ 

�������������� | 

Gross amount from sales of 

assets other than inventory 

(i) Securities (ii) Other 

Less: cost or other basis 

and sales expenses 

Gain or (loss) 

~~~ 

~~~~~~~ 

Net gain or (loss) ������������������� | 

Gross income from fundraising events (not 

including $ of 

contributions reported on line 1c). See 

Part IV, line 18 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Less: direct expenses~~~~~~~~~~ 

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ����� | 

Gross income from gaming activities. See 

Part IV, line 19 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Less: direct expenses 

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities 

~~~~~~~~~ 

������ | 

Gross sales of inventory, less returns 

and allowances ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Less: cost of goods sold 

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory 

~~~~~~~~ 

������ | 

Miscellaneous Revenue 

All other revenue ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines 11a-11d ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

|������������� 

452,534. 

126,104. 
31,631. 

578,638. 

Student Tuition  6,056,872.6,056,872. 
Students with Disabili  331,916. 331,916. 

6,388,788. 

104. 104. 

Other Program Revenue  6,703. 6,703. 

6,703. 
6,974,233.6,395,491. 0. 104. 

 Form 990 (2018) 
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Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses 
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX �������������������������� 
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 

7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. 

(A) 
Total expenses 

(B) 
Program service 

expenses 

(C) 
Management and 
general expenses 

(D) 
Fundraising 
expenses 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 ~ 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 

individuals. See Part IV, line 22 ~~~~~~~ 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 

organizations, foreign governments, and foreign 

individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 ~~~ 

4 Benefits paid to or for members ~~~~~~~ 

5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees ~~~~~~~~ 

6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and 

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ~~~ 

7 Other salaries and wages ~~~~~~~~~~ 

8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 

9 Other employee benefits ~~~~~~~~~~ 

10 Payroll taxes ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11 Fees for services (non-employees): 

a Management ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Legal ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Accounting ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Lobbying ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 

f Investment management fees ~~~~~~~~ 

g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, 

column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch O.) 

12 Advertising and promotion ~~~~~~~~~ 

13 Office expenses~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

14 Information technology ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

15 Royalties ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

16 Occupancy ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

17 Travel ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses 

for any federal, state, or local public officials~ 

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings ~~ 

20 Interest ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

21 Payments to affiliates ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization ~~ 

23 Insurance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If line 
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A) 
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.) 
Classroom Suppliesa 
Other Student Servicesb 

c 

d 

e All other expenses 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e

251,076. 251,076. 

3,506,821. 3,446,463. 60,358. 

48,836. 48,836. 
493,940. 486,054. 7,886. 
274,586. 254,453. 20,133. 

11,000. 11,000. 
12,745. 12,745. 

216,993. 169,758. 47,235. 
12,477. 11,977. 500. 

139,311. 106,547. 32,764. 
110,800. 105,800. 5,000. 

274,692. 247,086. 27,606. 

36,544. 34,217. 2,327. 
217,943. 200,382. 17,561. 

177,753. 159,978. 17,775. 
54,754. 50,545. 4,209. 

149,999. 149,999. 
144,250. 144,250. 

51,779. 36,293. 15,486. 
6,186,299. 5,652,638. 533,661. 0. 

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization 

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined 

educational campaign and fundraising solicitation. 

Check here | if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) 

 Form 990 (2018) 
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Part X Balance Sheet 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ����������������������������� 

(A) (B) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10c 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

a 

b 

10a 

10b 

A
s
s
e

ts
 

Total assets. 

L
ia

b
il
it

ie
s
 

Total liabilities. 

Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here and 

complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. 

27 

28 

29 

Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here 

and complete lines 30 through 34. 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

ts
 o

r 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c

e
s
 

Beginning of year End of year 

Cash - non-interest-bearing 

Savings and temporary cash investments 

Pledges and grants receivable, net 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Accounts receivable, net ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, 

trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete 

Part II of Schedule L ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under 

section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing 

employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary 

employees' beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part II of Sch L ~~ 

Notes and loans receivable, net 

Inventories for sale or use 

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Investments - publicly traded securities 

Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 

Intangible assets 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) ���������� 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Grants payable 

Deferred revenue 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Tax-exempt bond liabilities 

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~ 

Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, 

key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons. 

Complete Part II of Schedule L ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~ 

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties ~~~~~~~~ 

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of 

Schedule D ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines 17 through 25 ������������������ 

| 

Unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets 

Permanently restricted net assets 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

| 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~ 

Total net assets or fund balances ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ���������������� 

902,144. 62,872. 
109,107. 6,030. 
41,963. 51,457. 
52,982. 46,119. 

7,351,513. 
362,831. 5,838,273. 6,988,682. 

0. 75,028. 
6,944,469. 7,230,188. 
1,219,829. 933,821. 

228,075. 181,578. 
3,391,918. 3,222,208. 

4,839,822. 4,337,607. 
X 

2,014,647. 2,887,231. 
90,000. 5,350. 

2,104,647. 2,892,581. 
6,944,469. 7,230,188. 

Form 990 (2018) 
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SCHEDULE A 
Public Charity Status and Public Support(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2018 
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 

Department of the Treasury Open to Public| Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 
Internal Revenue Service Inspection| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

(All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.Part I Reason for Public Charity Status 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.) 

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i). 

2 X A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). 

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name, 

city, and state: 

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.) 

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v). 

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

8 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

9 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 

university: 

10 An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from 

activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment 

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. 

See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.) 

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4). 

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or 

more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in 

lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving 

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting 

organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B. 

b Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having 

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported 

organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. 

c Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, 

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) 

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness 

requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III 

functionally integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

f Enter the number of supported organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s). 
(i) Name of supported 

organization 

(ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization 
(described on lines 1-10 
above (see instructions)) 

(iv) Is the organization listed 
in your governing document? 

(v) Amount of monetary 

support (see instructions) 

(vi) Amount of other 

support (see instructions)Yes No 

Total 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 832021 10-11-18 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2 

Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) 
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the organization 

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.) 

Section A. Public Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 

membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") ~~ 

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf ~~~~ 

3 The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to 

the organization without charge ~

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 ~~~ 

5 The portion of total contributions 

by each person (other than a 

governmental unit or publicly 

supported organization) included 

on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the 

amount shown on line 11, 

column (f) ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 

(a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total 

Section B. Total Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 

7 Amounts from line 4 ~~~~~~~ 

8 Gross income from interest, 

dividends, payments received on 

securities loans, rents, royalties, 

and income from similar sources ~ 

9 Net income from unrelated business 

activities, whether or not the 

business is regularly carried on ~ 

10 Other income. Do not include gain 

or loss from the sale of capital 

assets (Explain in Part VI.) ~~~~ 

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(e) 2018 

12 

(f) Total 

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) 

organization, check this box and stop here ��������������������������������������������� | 
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 

14 

15 

14 

15 

~~~~~~~~~~~~Public support percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) 

Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 

% 

%~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and 

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

b 33 1/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more, 

and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization 

meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | 

b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or 

more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the 

organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~ | 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions ��� | 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 3 

Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization fails to 

qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 

Section A. Public Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 

membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") ~~ 

2 Gross receipts from admissions, 
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in 
any activity that is related to the 
organization's tax-exempt purpose 

3 Gross receipts from activities that 

are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513 ~~~~~ 

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf ~~~~ 

5 The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to 

the organization without charge ~ 

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 ~~~

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 

3 received from disqualified persons 

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received 

from other than disqualified persons that 

exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the 

amount on line 13 for the year ~~~~~~ 

c Add lines 7a and 7b ~~~~~~~ 

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from line 6.) 

(a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total 

Section B. Total Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) | 

9 Amounts from line 6 ~~~~~~~ 

10a Gross income from interest, 
dividends, payments received on 
securities loans, rents, royalties, 
and income from similar sources ~ 

b Unrelated business taxable income 

(less section 511 taxes) from businesses 

acquired after June 30, 1975 ~~~~ 

c Add lines 10a and 10b ~~~~~~ 
11 Net income from unrelated business 

activities not included in line 10b, 
whether or not the business is 
regularly carried on ~~~~~~~ 

12 Other income. Do not include gain 
or loss from the sale of capital 

~~~~assets (Explain in Part VI.) 
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.) 

(a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total 

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization, 

check this box and stop here ���������������������������������������������������� | 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
15 

16 

15 

16 

Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 

Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part III, line 15 

~~~~~~~~~~~ % 

%�������������������� 

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage 
17 

18 

2018 

2017 

17 

18 

Investment income percentage for (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 

Investment income percentage from Schedule A, Part III, line 17 

~~~~~~~~ % 

%~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not 

more than 33 1/3%, check this box andstop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~~~~~~~ | 

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and 

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box andstop here.  The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ~~~~ | 

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions �������� | 
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Part IV Supporting Organizations 
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A 

and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete 

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 

Section A. All Supporting Organizations 

1 

2 

3a 

b 

c 

4a 

b 

c 

5a 

b 

c 

6 

7 

8 

9a 

b 

c 

10a 

b 

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing 

documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status 

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported 
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer 
(b) and (c) below. 

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and 

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the 
organization made the determination. 

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 

purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If 
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign 

supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion 
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination 

under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used 
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 
purposes. 

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes," 
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN 
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; 
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action 
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already 

designated in the organization's organizing document? 

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class 

benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also 

support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in 

Part VI. 

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 

(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with 

regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? 
If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 

disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described 

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 

4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated 

supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3a 

3b 

3c 

4a 

4b 

4c 

5a 

5b 

5c 

6 

7 

8 

9a 

9b 

9c 

10a 

10b 

 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Yes No 

11 

a 

b 

c 

11a 

11b 

11cPart VI.If "Yes" to a, b, or c, provide detail in 

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? 

A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) 

below, the governing body of a supported organization? 

A family member of a person described in (a) above? 

A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? 

(continued)Part IV Supporting Organizations 

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations 

1 

2 

Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to 

regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the 

tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or 
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization, 
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported 
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported 

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, 
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 

Yes No 

1 

2 

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations 

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors 

or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control 
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed 
the supported organization(s).

Yes No 

1 

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations 

1 

2 

3 

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 

organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax 

year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 

organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 

Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 

organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how 
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 

By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a 

significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's 

income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's 
supported organizations played in this regard. 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3 

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations 
Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year1 (see instructions). 

Complete below.a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. line 2 
Complete below.b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. line 3 

Describe in how you supported a government entity (see instructions).c The organization supported a governmental entity. Part VI 

2 

a 

b 

3

a 

b 

Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of 

the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify 

those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, 
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined 
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more 

of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the 
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these 
activities but for the organization's involvement. 

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or 

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each 

of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 

Yes No 

2a 

2b 

3a 

3b 

 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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 7 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 6 

Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI.) See instructions. All 

other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E. 

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year 
(B) Current Year 

(optional) 

1 Net short-term capital gain 1 

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2 

3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3 

4 Add lines 1 through 3 4 

5 Depreciation and depletion 5 

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or 

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or 

maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6 

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7 

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year 
(B) Current Year 

(optional) 

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see 

instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year): 

a Average monthly value of securities 1a 

b Average monthly cash balances 1b 

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c 

d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d 

e Discount claimed for blockage or other 

factors (explain in detail in Part VI): 

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2 

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d 3 

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount, 

see instructions) 4 

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5 

6 Multiply line 5 by .035 6 

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7 

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8 

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year 

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1 

2 Enter 85% of line 1 2 

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3 

4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3 4 

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to 

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions) 6 

Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization (see 

instructions). 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 7 

Part V Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued) 
Section D - Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported 

organizations, in excess of income from activity 

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required) 

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive 

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 

9 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6 

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) 

(i) 

Excess Distributions 

(ii) 
Underdistributions 

Pre-2018 

(iii) 
Distributable 

Amount for 2018 

1 Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6 

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018 (reason-

able cause required- explain in Part VI). See instructions. 

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018 

a From 2013 

b From 2014 

c From 2015 

d From 2016 

e From 2017 

f Total of lines 3a through e 

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

h Applied to 2018 distributable amount 

i Carryover from 2013 not applied (see instructions) 

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f. 

4 Distributions for 2018 from Section D, 

line 7: $ 

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

b Applied to 2018 distributable amount 

c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4. 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if 

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater 

than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h 

and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in 

Part VI. See instructions. 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2019. Add lines 3j 

and 4c. 

8 Breakdown of line 7: 

a Excess from 2014 

b Excess from 2015 

c Excess from 2016 

d Excess from 2017 

e Excess from 2018 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 8 

Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part III, line 12; 
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, 
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, 
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. 
(See instructions.) 

 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Schedule B 
(Form 990, 990-EZ, 
or 990-PF) 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Schedule of Contributors 
| Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

 

2018 
Name of the organization 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts 

Employer identification number 

 
Organization type (check one): 

Filers of: Section:

X 3Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( ) (enter number) organization 

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation 

527 political organization 

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation 

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation 

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation 

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. 

Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions. 

General Rule 

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or 

property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions. 

Special Rules 

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under 

sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from 

any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h; 

or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II. 

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the 
exclusivelyyear, total contributions of more than $1,000 for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for the 

prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I (entering "N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), 

II, and III. 

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the 
exclusivelyyear, contributions for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box 

exclusivelyis checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an  religious, charitable, etc., 

purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively 

religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF), 

but it must answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part I, line 2, to 

certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018) 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018) Page 2 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  

Part I Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed. 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

1 Donna Marie Cozine 

95 Lonesome Road 

Fairport, NY 14450 

$ 30,500. 

XPerson 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

2 Barbara Cozine 

68 Liftbridge Lane, E 

Fairport, NY 14450 

$ 30,500. 

XPerson 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

3 United States Department of Education 

400 Maryland Avenue, SW 

Washington, DC 20202 

$ 6,758. 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash X 
(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

4 New York State Department of Education 

89 Washington Avenue 

Albany, NY 12234 

$ 24,873. 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash X 
(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

5 New York State Department of Education 

89 Washington Avenue 

Albany, NY 12234 

$ 420,833. 

XPerson 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) 

No. 

(b) 

Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(c) 

Total contributions 

(d) 

Type of contribution 

$ 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018) 
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018) Page 3 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  

Part II Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II if additional space is needed. 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

3 
Paid Telephone and Internet expenses 
for the Organization. 

$ 6,758. 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

4 
Textbooks 

$ 24,873. 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

(a) 

No. 

from 

Part I 

(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

(c) 

FMV (or estimate) 

(See instructions.) 

(d) 

Date received 

$ 

 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018) 
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018) Page 4 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  
Part III Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year 

from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations 
completing Part III, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) | $ 

Use duplicate copies of Part III if additional space is needed. 
(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Relationship of transferor to transferee 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Relationship of transferor to transferee 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Relationship of transferor to transferee 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(e) Transfer of gift 

Relationship of transferor to transferee 

 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)
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SCHEDULE D 
(Form 990) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Financial Statements 
| Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. 
| Attach to Form 990. 

|Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

 

2018 
Open to Public 
Inspection 

Renaissance Academy CharterName of the organization Employer identification number 
School of the Arts  

Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Complete if the 

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6. 

1 Total number at end of year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts 

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) ~~~~ 

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) ~~~~~~ 

4 Aggregate value at end of year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds 

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only 

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring 

impermissible private benefit? �������������������������������������������� Yes No 

Part II Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7. 

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply). 

Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area 

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure 

Preservation of open space 

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last 

Held at the End of the Tax Year 

2a

2b

2c

2d 

day of the tax year. 

a Total number of conservation easements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure 

listed in the National Register ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax 

year | 

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located | 

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of 

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

| 

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

| $ 

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and 

include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for 

conservation easements. 

Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8. 

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 

historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part XIII, 

the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items. 

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical 

treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts 

relating to these items: 

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide 

the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items: 

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X ����������������������������������� | $ 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 2 

Part III (continued)Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets 
Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items 

(check all that apply): 

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs 

b Scholarly research e Other 

c Preservation for future generations 

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIII. 

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets 

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ������������ Yes No 

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or 
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21. 

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included 

on Form 990, Part X? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ Yes No 

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: 

c Beginning balance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Additions during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

e Distributions during the year ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

f Ending balance ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amount 

1c 

1d 

1e 

1f 

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? ~~~~~ Yes No 

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII ������������� 

Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10. 

1a Beginning of year balance ~~~~~~~ 

b Contributions ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 

d Grants or scholarships ~~~~~~~~~ 

e Other expenditures for facilities 

and programs ~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

f Administrative expenses ~~~~~~~~ 

g End of year balance ~~~~~~~~~~ 

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back 

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as: 

a Board designated or quasi-endowment | % 

b Permanent endowment | % 

c Temporarily restricted endowment | % 

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%. 

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization 

by: 

(i) unrelated organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

(ii) related organizations ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Yes No 

3a(i) 

3a(ii) 

3b 

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds. 

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10. 

Description of property (a) Cost or other 
basis (investment) 

(b) Cost or other 
basis (other) 

(c) Accumulated 
depreciation 

(d) Book value 

1a Land ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

b Buildings ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

c Leasehold improvements ~~~~~~~~~~ 

d Equipment ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

e Other �������������������� 

89,964. 89,964. 
7,191,337. 335,280. 6,856,057. 

70,212. 27,551. 42,661. 

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.)������������� | 6,988,682. 
Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 Page 4 

Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

1 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

2a 

2b 

2c 

2d 

2a 2d 2e 

32e 1 

a 

b 

c 

4a 

4b 

4a 4b 

3 4c. 

4c 

5(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.) 

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 

Donated services and use of facilities 

Recoveries of prior year grants 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines through ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Subtract line from line ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1: 

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines and 

Total revenue. Add lines and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

����������������� 

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. 

6,974,233. 

0. 
6,974,233. 

0. 
6,974,233. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

1 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

2a 

2b 

2c 

2d 

2a 2d 

2e 1 

2e 

3 

a 

b 

c 

4a 

4b 

4a 4b 

3 4c. 

4c 

5(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) 

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 

Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Donated services and use of facilities 

Prior year adjustments 

Other losses 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines through 

Subtract line from line 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1: 

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 

Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Add lines and 

Total expenses. Add lines and 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

���������������� 

Part XIII Supplemental Information. 

6,186,299. 

0. 
6,186,299. 

0. 
6,186,299. 

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, 

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information. 

 Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 
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Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service | Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) | Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 
Part IV, line 13, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48. 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

| Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

Employer identification number 

YES NO 

1 

2 

3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

a 

b 

c 

d 

a 

b 

c 

d 

e 

f 

g 

h 

4a 

4b 

4c 

4d 

5a 

5b 

5c 

5d 

5e 

5f 

5g 

5h 

6a 

6b 

7 

6 

7 

a 

b 

Name of the organization 

Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws, 

other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its brochures, 

catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 

Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during the 

period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes 

the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? If "Yes," please describe. If "No," please explain. 

If you need more space, use Part II ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization maintain the following? 

Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? 

Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory basis? 

Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing with student 

admissions, programs, and scholarships? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions? 

If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to: 

Students' rights or privileges? 

Admissions policies? 

Employment of faculty or administrative staff? 

Scholarships or other financial assistance? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Educational policies? 

Use of facilities? 

Athletic programs? 

Other extracurricular activities? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part II. 

Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 

Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 

If you answered "Yes" on either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part II. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through 4.05 of 

Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," explain on Part II �������������� 

SCHEDULE E 

Part I 

Schools 
2018 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  

X 

X 

X 
During the registration period, our application packet states 
"Your child will not be discriminated against based upon 
information provided" in the application. 

X 
X 

X 
X 

We do not give scholarships. We are a free public charter 
school. We do not seek contributions. We have not solicited 
contributions. If we do, we will include information that we 
will not discriminate. 

X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 
Compensated Employees 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. 
Open to Public 

Inspection
Attach to Form 990. 

| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 
Employer identification number 

Yes No 

1a 

b 

1b 

2 

2 

3 

4 

a 

b 

c 

4a 

4b 

4c 

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9. 

5 

5a 

5b 

6a 

6b 

7 

8 

9 

a 

b 

6 

a 

b 

7 

8 

9 

| 
| 

Name of the organization 

Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990, 

Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items. 

First-class or charter travel 

Travel for companions 

Housing allowance or residence for personal use 

Payments for business use of personal residence 

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments 

Discretionary spending account 

Health or social club dues or initiation fees 

Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef) 

If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or 

reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors, 

trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's 

CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to 

establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part III. 

Compensation committee 

Independent compensation consultant 

Form 990 of other organizations 

Written employment contract 

Compensation survey or study 

Approval by the board or compensation committee 

During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing 

organization or a related organization: 

Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 

Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 

Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III. 

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation 

contingent on the revenues of: 

The organization? 

Any related organization? 

If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation 

contingent on the net earnings of: 

The organization? 

Any related organization? 

If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments 

not described on lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part III 

Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the 

initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part III 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in 

Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? ��������������������������������������������� 

SCHEDULE J 
(Form 990) 

Part I Questions Regarding Compensation 

Compensation Information 

2018 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  

X 

X 
X 
X 

X 
X 

X 
X 

X 

X 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 Page 2 

Part II Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed. 

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii). 
Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII. 

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual. 

(A) Name and Title 

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and 
other deferred 
compensation 

(D) Nontaxable 
benefits 

(E) Total of columns 
(B)(i)-(D) 

(F) Compensation 
in column (B) 

reported as deferred 
on prior Form 990 

(i) Base 
compensation 

(ii) Bonus & 
incentive 

compensation 

(iii) Other 
reportable 

compensation 

(1) Donna Marie Cozine, Ed.D. 
Head of Academics 

(i) 

(ii) 

128,618. 0. 0. 6,431. 23,572. 158,621. 0. 
0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

(ii) 

Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 Page 3 

Part III Supplemental Information 

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part for any additional information. 

Part I, Line 3: 

The full founding Board of Trustees met 6 times to review data solicited by 

two Board of Trustees from other comparable institutions and also met with 

the Head of Academics three times to discuss expectations and remunerations 

comparable to responsibilities.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 
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SCHEDULE L 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Transactions With Interested Persons 
| Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 

28b, or 28c, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b. 

| Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 
| Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

 

2018 
Open To Public 
Inspection 

Name of the organization Renaissance Academy Charter Employer identification number 

School of the Arts  
Part I Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3), section 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations only). 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b. 

1 
(a) Name of disqualified person 

(b) Relationship between disqualified 
person and organization (c) Description of transaction 

(d) Corrected? 

Yes No 

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under 

section 4958 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | $ 

Part II Loans to and/or From Interested Persons. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the organization 

reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22. 

(a) Name of 
interested person 

(b) Relationship 
with organization 

(c) Purpose 
of loan 

(d) Loan to or 
from the 

organization? 

(e) Original 
principal amount

(f) Balance due (g) In 
default? 

(h) Approved 
by board or 
committee? 

(i) Written 
agreement? 

To From Yes No Yes No Yes No 
Barbara Cozine Family rBuilding X 350,000. 181,578. X X X 

181,578.Total ���������������������������������������� | $ 
Part III Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 27. 

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between 
interested person and 

the organization 

(c) Amount of 
assistance 

(d) Type of 
assistance 

(e) Purpose of 
assistance 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 

See Part V for Continuations 
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Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 Page 2 

Part IV Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c. 

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between interested 
person and the organization 

(c) Amount of 
transaction 

(d) Description of 
transaction 

(e) Sharing of 
organization's 

revenues? 

Yes No 
Barbara Cozine Family relationship 5,500.Paid consul X 

Part V Supplemental Information. 
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions). 

Schedule L, Part II, Loans To and From Interested Persons: 

(a) Name of Person: Barbara Cozine 

(b) Relationship with Organization: Family relationship with Head of 

Academics 

(c) Purpose of Loan: Building acquisition 

Sch L, Part IV, Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons: 

(a) Name of Person: Barbara Cozine 

(b) Relationship Between Interested Person and Organization: 

Family relationship with Head of Academics 

(d) Description of Transaction: Paid consultant 

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 
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Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30. 

Attach to Form 990.

 Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Employer identification number 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

29 

Yes No 

30 

31 

32 

33 

a 

b 

30a 

31 

32a 

a 

b 

Name of the organization 

Check if 
applicable 

Number of 
contributions or 

items contributed 

Noncash contribution 
amounts reported on 

Form 990, Part VIII, line 1g 

Method of determining 
noncash contribution amounts 

Art - Works of art 

Art - Historical treasures 

Art - Fractional interests 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

Books and publications 

Clothing and household goods 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~ 

Cars and other vehicles 

Boats and planes 

Intellectual property 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Securities - Publicly traded 

Securities - Closely held stock 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~ 

Securities - Partnership, LLC, or 

trust interests 

Securities - Miscellaneous 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~ 

Qualified conservation contribution -

Historic structures 

Qualified conservation contribution - Other 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~ 

Real estate - Residential 

Real estate - Commercial 

Real estate - Other 

~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Collectibles 

Food inventory 

Drugs and medical supplies 

Taxidermy 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Historical artifacts 

Scientific specimens 

Archeological artifacts 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~~ 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

Other ( ) 

Other ( ) 

Other ( ) 

Other ( ) 

Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions 

for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement ~~~~ 

During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part I, lines 1 through 28, that it 

must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be used for 

exempt purposes for the entire holding period? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part II. 

Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? ~~~~~~ 

Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash 

contributions? ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

If "Yes," describe in Part II. 

If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked, 

describe in Part II. 

SCHEDULE M 
(Form 990) 

Part I Types of Property 

Noncash Contributions 
2018J 

J 
J 

J 
J 
J 
J 

Renaissance Academy Charter 
School of the Arts  

X 24,873.Fair Market Value 

ERATE X 1 6,758.Fair Market Value 

X 

X 

X 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990) 2018 
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New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



      
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

   

             
             

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

6,564,043 1,050,674 
5,608,230 1,154,920 

955,813 (104,245) 
446 54 
500 -

OTHER 

-
-
-

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 
- -
- 716,509 
- (716,509) 

TOTAL 

7,614,717 
7,484,660 

130,057 
-

500 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

Greece $12,432.00 

Rocheser City School District $13,995.00 

Churchville-Chili $11,508.00 

Gates-Chili $14,068.00 

Fairport $12,209.00 

Spencerport $12,318.00 

East Irondequoit $13,180.00 

Rush Henrietta $13,923.00 

509,712 49,728 

5,458,050 615,780 

23,016 11,508 

112,544 28,136 

12,209 12,209 

12,318 

52,720 -
13,923 -

6,182,174 729,679 

-
-
-

-
-

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -

559,440 

6,073,830 

34,524 

140,680 

24,418 

12,318 

52,720 

13,923 

6,911,853 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- -

- -
- -
- -

6,182,174 729,679 

280,000 

281,357 31,262 

54,793 6,088 

- -

- -
- -
- -

336,150 317,350 

- -
7,200 800 

1,935 215 

- -
- -

22,386 2,487 

14,198 143 

45,719 3,645 

6,564,043 1,050,674 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

-

-
-
-

6,911,853 

280,000 

312,619 

60,881 

-

-
-
-

653,500 

-
8,000 

2,150 

-
-

24,873 

14,341 

49,364 

7,614,717 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 0.40 - - - 53,515 53,515 



 
   

    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  
    

 

  

 
 

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

 
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

      
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

Instructional Management 3.60 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 1.00 

CFO / Director of Finance 

Operation / Business Manager 1.00 

Administrative Staff 4.00 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 10 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

6,564,043 1,050,674 - - - 7,614,717 
5,608,230 1,154,920 - - 716,509 7,484,660 

955,813 
446 

(104,245) 
54 

- - (716,509) 130,057 
-

500 - 500 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

241,695 26,855 - - 51,450 320,000 

22,500 2,500 - - 25,000 50,000 

- - - - - -
- - - 95,000 95,000 

- - - 148,444 148,444 

264,195 29,355 373,409 666,959 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

Teachers - Regular 21.00 910,800 101,200 - - - 1,012,000 

Teachers - SPED 9.00 414,079 - - - 414,079 

Substitute Teachers 1.00 58,500 6,500 - - - 65,000 

Teaching Assistants 15.00 455,760 50,640 - - - 506,400 

Specialty Teachers 11.00 528,503 58,723 - - - 587,225 

Aides - - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 4.90 239,677 26,631 - - - 266,308 

RTI and Title I teachers 6.00 257,067 28,563 - - - 285,630 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 67.9 2,450,307 686,335 3,136,642 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse 

Librarian 

Custodian 

Security 

Outreach Coordinator 
Cafeteria Aides 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

0.10 5,400 600 - - - 6,000 

1.00 39,713 4,413 - - - 44,125 

2.00 59,752 5,432 - - 2,716 67,900 

- - - - - - -
1.00 56,732 56,732 

0.60 15,296 1,700 - - - 16,995 

4.7 120,160 12,144 59,448 191,752 

82.6 2,834,662 727,834 432,857 3,995,353 

Payroll Taxes 226,773 58,227 - - 34,629 319,628 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 779,540 200,161 - - 119,044 1,098,745 

Retirement / Pension 97,056 - - - - 97,056 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,103,369 258,388 153,672 1,515,429 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 3,938,031 986,222 586,529 5,510,783 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - 12,000 12,000 

Legal - - - 15,000 15,000 

Management Services - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - - -
Payroll Services - - - - 5,000 

Special Ed Services - - - - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) - - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 300,520 27,320 - - 16,660 344,500 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 300,520 27,320 43,660 376,500 



 
 

     
    

  
   

  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

        
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

   

      
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses - - - 4,500 4,500 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 58,500 6,500 - - - 65,000 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials 7,000 - - - 7,000 

Textbooks / Workbooks 49,386 5,487 - - - 54,873 

Supplies & Materials other 32,850 3,650 - - - 36,500 

Equipment / Furniture 16,200 1,800 - - - 18,000 

Telephone 4,400 600 - - 1,000 6,000 

Technology 65,700 7,300 - - 2,000 75,000 

Student Testing & Assessment 9,900 1,100 - - - 11,000 

Field Trips 13,500 1,500 - - - 15,000 

Transportation (student) 90,000 10,000 - - - 100,000 

Student Services - other 54,900 6,100 - - - 61,000 

Office Expense - - - 28,000 28,000 

Staff Development 36,000 4,000 - - 2,000 42,000 

Staff Recruitment 1,800 200 - - - 2,000 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 4,500 500 - - - 5,000 

School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) 1,000 1,000 - - 3,000 5,000 

Fundraising - - - - - -
Other - - - 3,500 3,500 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 438,636 56,737 44,000 539,373 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 39,600 3,600 - - 1,800 45,000 

Janitorial 17,160 1,560 - - 780 19,500 

Building and Land Rent / Lease (Mortgages and Loans) 609,104 55,373 - - 27,687 692,164 

Repairs & Maintenance 117,040 10,640 - - 5,320 133,000 

Equipment / Furniture 21,419 1,947 - - 974 24,340 

Security 3,520 320 - - 160 4,000 

Utilities 123,200 11,200 - - 5,600 140,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 931,044 84,640 42,320 1,058,004 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - - -
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,608,230 1,154,920 716,509 7,484,660 

NET INCOME 955,813 (104,245) - - (716,509) 130,057 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
TOTAL 

ENROLLED 

Greece 40 5 45 

Rocheser City School District 390 44 434 

Churchville-Chili 2 1 3 

Gates-Chili 8 2 10 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,564,043 1,050,674 - - - 7,614,717 
Total Expenses 5,608,230 1,154,920 - - 716,509 7,484,660 

Net Income 955,813 (104,245) - - (716,509) 130,057 
Actual Student Enrollment 446 54 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 500 - 500 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

 
 

  

  

      
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Renaissance Academy Charter School of the Arts 

East Irondequoit 4 4 

Fairport 1 1 2 

Spencerport - 1 1 
Rush Henrietta 1 1 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 446 54 500 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 14,718 19,457 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 12,575 21,387 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 6,564,043 1,050,674 - - - 7,614,717 
Total Expenses 5,608,230 1,154,920 - - 716,509 7,484,660 

Net Income 955,813 (104,245) - - (716,509) 130,057 
Actual Student Enrollment 446 54 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 500 - 500 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

         

   

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

Chief Executive Officer .4 



           
   

   
     

  
   

   
  

          

      
     

 
 

 

  
     

             
               

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Chief Exec Officer 6; Principal 1; Curriculum Dir. 1; Dir Arts 1; 
Dean of Students 1 

Chief of Operations 1 

Office Staff 2 Secretaries 2 

Classroom Teachers 21 

Special Ed Teachers 9 

Substitute Teachers as needed 

Teaching Assistants 15 

Arts Teachers 8, ELL 1; Math Coach 1; ELA Coach 1 

4.9 - Counselor, SW, Psych, Speech 1.9 

RTI and Title I teachers 6 

Nurse .1 

Librarian 1 

Custodians 4 

Outreach Coordinator 1 

Lunch Aides 3 - .2 each 

Security 50K;Bd Consult 11K; CI Student Services 96K; 7.5K CS Serv.; Curr. Devel, 
                



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

























































	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/08/2019 • Last updated: 07/30/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 
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1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Steven 
Gordon 

Marilynn
Patterson 
Grant 

Bert 
Brinkerho 
ff 

Makini 
Beck 

Aaron 
Rosen 

Guy Arie 

Janine 
Barry 

Dale 
Klein 

Zachary
Harrison 
(resigned
June 9, 
2019) 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Vice 
Chair 

Treasurer 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Secretary 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

1. 
Finance 
2. 
Governan 
ce 

1. 
Academic 
2. 
Develop 
ment 

1. 
Finance 
2. 
Develop 
ment 

Academic 

1. 
Develop 
ment 
2. 
Governan 
ce 

Academic 

Human 
Resource 
s 

Governan 
ce 

Governan 
ce 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

3 

3 

3 

2 

2 

1 

2 

3 

2 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

01/13/20
18 

04/14/20
17 

04/14/20
18 

06/13/20
17 

04/11/20
17 

05/09/20
18 

05/09/20
18 

04/10/20
18 

06/13/20
17 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

01/13/20
21 

04/14/20
20 

04/14/20
21 

06/13/20
20 

04/11/20
20 

05/09/20
20 

05/09/20
21 

04/10/20
20 

06/13/20
20 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

11 

8 

7 

6 

8 

9 

8 

5 or less 

7 
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1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

9 

0 

0 

9 

11 

12 
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Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 08/20/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTS 

Are all monthly BOT meeting Yes 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

A. Provide if posted on the https://www.renacad.org/o/renaissance academy charter
charter school's website a URL school of the arts/browse/55458 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 08/20/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

RENAISSANCE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE ARTSSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

RA has made the retention targets for
economically disadvantaged students. RA
has been able to meet these targets by
recruiting at Head Start facilities, advertising
in the Rochester area, attending the local
public markets and handing out flyers, and
participating in Charter School Fairs. Head
Start facilities provide pre school services to
economically disadvantaged students. RA
will continue to survey parents around a
variety of program components and use that
data to increase retention. If a student shall 
leave our school we will follow up on the
reason and identify any need for
improvement. 

RA will continue to target organizations that
serve low income students. 

RA has consistently not met enrollment
targets for ELL students. Over the past five
years RA has made significant efforts and it
appears that the efforts are beginning to pay
dividends. In an effort to communicate with 
ELL families in their native language, RA
provided recruitment material in 7 languages
to inform potential ELL families about RA. We
contracted Propio interpreting services to
translate our flyer, application and
instruction sheet into the following
languages: Arabic, Spaish, Burmese, Nepali,
French, Somali and Karen. RA also utilized 

1 / 6 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

Proprio’s interpreting services during phone
and face to face conversations as well. RA 
relied on social media to inform our RA 
families and the Rochester community that
we were recruiting ELL families. John Loury
from Cause and Effect Strategy assisted RA
with our social media recruitment efforts. At 
each child care recruitment site the FSC 
spoke with the coordinator of the event and
requested that they identify any ELL families
that she could speak with. The FSC also
asked current ELL families to distribute fliers 
and encourage their friends and families to
apply to RA.
The Family Services Coordinator (FSC)
continues to take exhaustive steps to reach
out to a multitude of organizations. She has
contacted numerous organizations, which
include Head Start, Preschool contacts, 
Library ELL Classes, Canvassing
neighborhoods, and sharing informational
brochures and fliers in both English and
seven various languages about our school
programs and services. In addition she
increased the range and number of contacts
to include No One Left Behind, Mary’s Place,
a refugee outreach center, Rochester
Refugee Resettlement Services, Saint’s
Place, Rochester Chin Christian Church, 
Refugees helping Refugees, Retired and
active ESOL teachers, BOCES, Ibero, a 
Spanish community center, including their
Early Childhood Services division, Lake
Avenue Baptist Church and the Lighthouse
Christian Fellowship Church, whose
congregants include Burmese Refugees, the
Maplewood library that sponsors ELL classes
for various groups who come from Yemen,
South East Asia, Nepal, Somalia, Burma, and
Thailand. The Family Services Coordinator
met with various child care agencies listed
below. Each location was an opportunity to
introduce potential ELL families to RA. The
FSC diligently sought out ELL families andEnglish made inquiries. At each child care site, sheLangua spoke with the recruitment coordinator andge asked if they knew of any ELL families thatLearner she could approach. She also displayed thes/Multili ELL posters and/or fliers in each location asngual well. Child Care agencies: The RochesterLearner Childfirst Network, The downtown YMCA s Child Care services families who come from 
the Congo, Somali, and Puerto Rico, ABC 

RA will continue to take the many steps it
has outlined for the recruitment of ELL/MLL
students. Additionally, RA will continue to
develop relationships with organizations that
aid refugees. 

2 / 6 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

Head Start, IBERO and Volunteers of 
America. The FSC canvased two apartment
complexes (Twin Beeches and Chatham
Gardens) where the primary languages
spoken are Nepali, Arabic, Spanish and
Somali. She hung up fliers and spoke with a
handful of families. She also went to ethnic 
markets and local businesses such as the 
Maytag Laundromat on Lake Avenue to hang
fliers. The Family Services Coordinator
partnered with Heritage Christian Services a
human service agency that advocates for
children, older adults and people with
disabilities. This relationship resulted in
assisting a family who was displaced from
Puerto Rico after Hurricane Maria. The family
has 4 children who are ELL students with 
IEP’s. The family applied and was selected in
the lottery to register with RA for the 2019
2020 school year.
Other organizations that the FSC reached out
to was No One Left Behind, Mary’s Place A
refugee outreach center, Rochester Refugee
Resettlement Services, Saint’s Place, 
Refugees Helping Refugees, reached out to a
number of apartment complexes that houses
refugees/ELL families, Monroe Community
College (MCC) Cross Cultural Counseling
staff member Donald Beech. One of our 
parents is a student at MCC and she
distributed fliers to ELL families on our 
behalf, specifically Burmese families. The
FSC kept in touch with a pastor from
Lighthouse Christian Fellowship that she met
at a refugee conference from the previous
year and invited him and his wife to tour the
school, which they did. The FSC will continue
to foster this relationship and looks forward
to seeing the fruits of her labor blossoming
into families applying and registering for RA
The above efforts culminated in 36 self 
identified ELL applications to our school for
the 2019 2020 school year. As of this report,
RA will has 13 confirmed ELL students for the 
2019 2020 school year. There are 4 students
who are being evaluated to determine if they
will quality for services. RA continues to
discover that displaced refugees are
unaware of school choice for their children 
and that they register their children at the
public school where they are housed. Last
year, RCSD enrolled 559 displaced students
from Puerto Rico after Hurricane Maria this 
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year, more than any other district in the 
state. 

BEDS day data often shows the % of SWD
lower than Rochester and Greece because of 
the 75 entering students, those who may
have had CPSE services have often lost those 
services as they moved to kindergarten. It
takes 6 9 months for RA to get services for
those students who qualify. By the end of
each calendar year RA aligns closely with
RCSD and Greece with regard to the
percentage of students who are classified as
students with disabilities. RA has been able 
to accomplish this by recruiting for our
kindergarten classes from a number of
preschool programs and UPK centers that
serve children with disabilities. As stated in 
the previous item, students who come to us
from RCSD are declassified by RCSD prior to
attending our school, negatively affecting
our percentage of SWD, BEDS data indicate
that pre K students who attend RCSD remain
a SWD. RA closely monitors students who
were classified in Pre school who are 
registered to start school with us. In fact, RA
school representatives attend IEP meetings
at their resident school prior to them starting
school with us, in order to learn as much as 
we can about our students’ needs. Each of 
these students begins their kindergarten
year with an RTI plan. If after continuous
progress monitoring shows no growth RA will
request a meeting of the CSE to review data

Student and determine eligibility for services. RA
s with data on SWD indicates that the number of 
Disabilit students who are classified as SWDs 
ies increased by the close of the school year.

Program services for students with
disabilities are reviewed by our Coordinator
of Special Services and the Directors of
Education. They are guided by the following
questions: Are students meeting their IEP
goals? If they are not why? Do we need to
make changes to our program to strengthen
our approach to teaching students with
disabilities? During our charter term when
faced with evidence that we were not 
meeting the needs of a group of students, RA
worked with the NYSED Office of Special
Services, RCSD, and our internal staff to 
create a 15:1 class. Since beginning that
class, 2 students of the 11 in the class have 

RA will follow the same recruitment steps for
the following year. The school will also create
resources specifically for parents of potential
special education students so that they are
informed of the various programs. 

4 / 6 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

moved out to a less restrictive environment 
and one has moved into the class because of 
his level of need. When a student with 
disabilities leaves our school, it is often 
because they need to be in a program that
we do not have or they have moved to a
different resident district. RA’s instructional 
program has proven to be impactful for our
students with disabilities. Over the course of 
our charter term, 10 students with 
disabilities have been DECLASSIFIED. The 
declassification of SWD is always the goal of
education. The declassification of these 
students is definitive evidence that RA’s 
program is meeting the needs of SWDs. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

RA surveys parents around a variety ofEconom program components and use that data toically increase retention. If a student shall leave Disadva our school we will follow up on the reasonntaged and identify any need for improvement. 

Make an effort to ensure our current families 
are happy with their child’s experience at RA
by surveying our ELL families mid year and
hosting events that bring ELL families
together.
RA continues to develop relationships with
Refugee and Immigration Centers, religious
outreach centers, centers that have been 
established for individuals from other 
countries such as Ibero and other Spanish
speaking organizations. RA’s Family Services
Coordinator leads our outreach efforts. RA 
has been diligent and wide ranged in our
outreach. A list of RA’s outreach data to date 
is listed in item 4 of this section. RA will English
continue to develop and strengthenLangua 
relationships with each of the school’sge
contacts and seek additional outreach Learner 
opportunities. RA will provide flyers abouts/Multili
the school in English, Arabic and Spanish.ngual
The school will continue to invite center Learner 
leaders and parents to tour the school, s 

RA will continue to survey parents around a
variety of program components and use that
data to increase retention. If a student shall 
leave our school we will follow up on the
reason and identify any need for
improvement. The family services
coordinator will review reasons given for
leaving and determine what changes, if any,
should be made to enhance the experience
of the students and their families. 

RA will increase the opportunities for ELL/MLL
families to come together. The FSC will
continue to reach out to families to 
determine levels of satisfaction and need for 
programmatic adjustments. 
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offering translation services when needed.
RA will follow the recommendations, of ESOL 
specialists who RA has brainstormed with to
identify and recruit ELL students. These
include but are not limited to, attending
ethnic markets, going to libraries frequented
by foreigners such as Maplewood Library,
reaching out to Lake Avenue Baptist Church
which has a population of Burmese citizens
and refugee health centers, inquire from
where other schools are acquiring their ELL
students and bringing parents and their
children from refugee centers to tour our
school by bus. 

RA continues to conduct outreach to 
organizations for students with disabilities
including Head Start Preschool programs that
provide special education services to
students. RA will continue its current practice
of attending the IEP meetings of incomingStudent students as they transition to our school. RAs with reviews our program guided by the following:Disabilit Are students meeting their IEP goals? If theyies are not why? Do we need to make changes
to our program to strengthen our approach
to teaching students with disabilities? RA will
continue to liaise with sending districts to
advocate for services for students who are 
eligible for them. 

RA will work with the RCSD department of
special services to get students the services
they need. The school will also contact
parents regularly to determine their levels of
satisfaction. Results of those conversations 
will inform changes that may need to be
made at RA. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/09/2019 • Last updated: 07/10/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

40 5 5 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

5 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

2 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

2 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

6 46 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 5 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

The 5 classroom teachers that departed: 1 left to be a stay at home mom after having a baby, 1 was 

terminated with cause, 1 retired for the 2nd time in her 40 year teaching career, 1 left to move closer to 

his ailing father, 1 left to accept a position at another school. 

The 2 administrators that departed: 1 left due to retirement, 1 left to accept a position at another school 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 07/24/2019 • Last updated: 08/22/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

6.0 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

40 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

6.0 

5.0 

0.0 

0.0 

1.0 

0.0 
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